
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda. 

 
 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, January 16, 2018 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Zoning Public Hearing 
4. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson & M. John Wilson & ET AL to rezone 

25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) at Tract A, 151 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [Map 104B, 

Parcel 014] (staff-P&D) 
5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust to rezone 26,571.60 

square feet (.61 acres) at Tract B, 149 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [ Map 104B, Parcel 013] 

(staff-P&D) 
6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Estate of Claude P. Duncan to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 

acres) at Tract C, 147 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [Map 104B, Parcel 012] (staff-P&D) 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 
8. Approval of Agenda 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - January 5, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of 2018 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

10. Discussion and possible action on Oconee Springs Park Improvement Plan (staff-OSP) 
11. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D (Short Term 

Vacation Rentals) (AF) (tabled at 01-05-18 meeting) 
12. Authorization for Chairman to sign Service Delivery Strategy Certificate of Extension (staff-CM) 
13. Authorization for Chairman to sign letter to GDOT for concurrence with road closures in conjunction 

with the upcoming SR24-US441 widening project (staff-P&D) 
14. Discussion on litter maintenance (AF) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 
16. County Attorney Report 
17. Commissioner Announcements 

 
Closing 
18. Adjournment 

  

1



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson & M. John Wilson & ET AL to rezone 

25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) at Tract A, 151 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [Map 

104B, Parcel 014] (staff-P&D) 

 
 

  

2



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Thursday, January 4, 2018 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

January 4, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Mr. John Marshall Jr., Chairman, called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Attendance 

 

Mrs. Karen Pennamon called the roll. 

 

Present:  John Marshall Jr., Chairman, John Langley, Vice- Chairman, Alan Oberdeck, 

Frederick Ward 

Absent: Tommy Brundage 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, and Jonathan Gladden 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

 

Mr. Jonathan Gladden read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

4. Approval of Minutes – November 2, 2017 

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan M. Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr.  

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 2 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

11. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson & M. John Wilson & ET AL at Tract 

A, 151 Collis Marina Road to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 014]. * 
 

12. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust at Tract B, 

149 Collis Marina Road to rezone 26,571.60 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 013]. * 
 

13. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Estate of Claude P. Duncan at Tract C, 147 Collis Marina 

Road to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 104B, Parcel 012]. * 

 

Items 11, 12, & 13 were discussed together. Mr. Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson 

& M. John Wilson & ET AL; agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust; agent 

for Estate of Claude P. Duncan represented this request. Mr. McAllister stated that the 

applicants are requesting to rezone the three parcels from R-1 to RM-2 to combine with the 

adjacent 1.43-acre parcel which is zoned RM-2 (Map 104B, Parcel 011) for a total 3.08 acres. He 

further added that the developers are proposing to construct 18 townhouses and a 2,500-square 

foot amenity building within this development. Mr. McAllister stated the three parcels are 

located between a currently owned RM-3 town home development and an undeveloped RM-2 

zoned property. Mr. McAllister stated that the concept plan included in the packet illustrates 

what the applicants will accomplish with the rezoning request. He stated under the proposed 

RM-2 zoning the Putnam County standards require a front setback of 30 feet, a side setback of 

20 feet, and a rear setback of 20 feet except for Lake Oconee where the setback is 100 feet. Mr. 

McAllister stated the setbacks for the future development have been illustrated in the concept 

plan which is included in the application packet. He stated the applicants would not be asking for 

any type of variance with this project, and all the proposed units would meet the setback 

requirements for the district. He stated the total combined area for the proposed rezoning would 

encompass 3.08 acres and the density for RM-2 zoning is 6 units per acre. Therefore, the 3.08 

acres would allow for a total of 18 units. Mr. McAllister further explained the proposed parking 

and ingress/egress displayed in the concept plan are all in line with Putnam County design 

standards. He stated the type of development being proposed allows for condensing of building 

area which has the benefit of having remaining land use serve as common open space. Moreover, 

the proposed concept plan allows for approximately 50 percent of the site being available for 

landscape areas, wooded areas, and open space. Mr. McAllister also referenced the Putnam 

County/City of Eatonton 2007-2030 Comprehensive Plan which indicates the proposed area as 

mixed residential use and the proposed land use by the applicants fits into this category of mixed 

residential. The existing sewer and water infrastructure in this area is served by Piedmont Water, 

and the packet includes a letter by Piedmont Water allowing for service in the proposed project. 

Furthermore, Mr. McAllister stated he contacted the original designer of the pump station that 

serves the area and he initiated a separate study that confirms the pump station has capacity for 

this proposed development. In addition, all the required onsite construction of sewage, water, and 

roads will be provided by the developer at no cost to the county. Mr. McAllister stated there 

was further detailed information with potential traffic impact located within the agenda package 

and he would welcome any specific questions that the Commission might have. At the request of 

Ms. Lisa Jackson, he met with Fire Chief Hill to develop a site plan that adhered to the specific 

criteria for emergency vehicles and response; once the two developments are connected there 

will be even better access for emergency vehicles and turn around radius for those vehicles. Mr. 

McAllister closed with his appreciation for the consideration of promoting quality development 

within Putnam County. Mr. Carl Anderson spoke in opposition to the request. Mr. Anderson 

4



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 3 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

stated the last time the property was developed he accepted everything that was being proposed 

and he lost fifty feet of his land, five trees, and water runoff adversely effected his property (Map 

104B, Parcel 010). Mr. Anderson stated he wanted to make sure a buffer was included in the 

development plan for this request to prevent him from losing anymore of his property or trees. 

Mr. Marshall asked for clarification on where his property was located. Mr. Anderson stated 

his property abuts (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. Marshall stated he appreciated Mr. 

Anderson’s input and the Commission would try to be sensitive to his concerns with the 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked if the recommendation would need to be revised to 

include a buffer and abatement for runoff. Ms. Jackson replied that this inclusion would come in 

the preliminary review however, the buffer requirement was already included in the staff 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked Mr. McAllister if the packet included an elevation of the 

properties. Mr. McAllister stated no but the developers are considering continuing the area that 

is seen on the other side of the lot; however, issues with topography could prevent the 

continuation and make for a lower level of elevation. He stated the current site plan created uses 

a 24x72 footprint, and since this would be a townhome community it would not be flat like the 

Waterfront Development which is adjacent. Mr. Oberdeck stated he had visited the property 

and observed the layout of: (Map 104B, Parcel 014), (Map 104B, Parcel 013), (Map 104B, 

Parcel 012) however, he had not observed the property at (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. 

McAllister stated on (Map 104B, Parcel 011) it did look as if some type of excavation had 

occurred at some point in the past by the previous owners. Mr. Oberdeck stated he thought the 

proposed development would be a good addition to the area. Mr. Langley asked Mr. McAllister 

if the property had been accurately surveyed. Mr. McAllister responded yes, that the survey 

provided had been done by a licensed surveyor; Mr. Langley also asked if Mr. Anderson would 

be able to see where the survey lines are. Mr. McAllister responded he would as they were 

staked off. Mr. Marshall stated the project was well thought out and the presentation excellent. 

Mr. Marshall further stated he was going to combine the three requests discussed into one vote. 

11)  Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .58 

acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be 

established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning shall be 

conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) 

of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 

26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 

acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 

012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, 

(2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential 

zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation 

of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 13) Staff 

recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 

with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 

104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .46 acres cannot be 

used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer shall be established 

adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

 

 

 

5



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 4 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Mr. Oberdeck made a motion for approval. Mr. Langley seconded. All approved. 

 

11) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.58 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

13) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 

to Rm-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.46 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr. 

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Lisa Jackson                                                                John Marshall, Jr.  

P&D Director                                                              Chairman   

  

  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust to rezone 

26,571.60 square feet (.61 acres) at Tract B, 149 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [ Map 

104B, Parcel 013] (staff-P&D) 

 
 

  

27



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Thursday, January 4, 2018 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

January 4, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Mr. John Marshall Jr., Chairman, called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Attendance 

 

Mrs. Karen Pennamon called the roll. 

 

Present:  John Marshall Jr., Chairman, John Langley, Vice- Chairman, Alan Oberdeck, 

Frederick Ward 

Absent: Tommy Brundage 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, and Jonathan Gladden 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

 

Mr. Jonathan Gladden read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

4. Approval of Minutes – November 2, 2017 

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan M. Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr.  

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 2 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

11. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson & M. John Wilson & ET AL at Tract 

A, 151 Collis Marina Road to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 014]. * 
 

12. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust at Tract B, 

149 Collis Marina Road to rezone 26,571.60 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 013]. * 
 

13. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Estate of Claude P. Duncan at Tract C, 147 Collis Marina 

Road to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 104B, Parcel 012]. * 

 

Items 11, 12, & 13 were discussed together. Mr. Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson 

& M. John Wilson & ET AL; agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust; agent 

for Estate of Claude P. Duncan represented this request. Mr. McAllister stated that the 

applicants are requesting to rezone the three parcels from R-1 to RM-2 to combine with the 

adjacent 1.43-acre parcel which is zoned RM-2 (Map 104B, Parcel 011) for a total 3.08 acres. He 

further added that the developers are proposing to construct 18 townhouses and a 2,500-square 

foot amenity building within this development. Mr. McAllister stated the three parcels are 

located between a currently owned RM-3 town home development and an undeveloped RM-2 

zoned property. Mr. McAllister stated that the concept plan included in the packet illustrates 

what the applicants will accomplish with the rezoning request. He stated under the proposed 

RM-2 zoning the Putnam County standards require a front setback of 30 feet, a side setback of 

20 feet, and a rear setback of 20 feet except for Lake Oconee where the setback is 100 feet. Mr. 

McAllister stated the setbacks for the future development have been illustrated in the concept 

plan which is included in the application packet. He stated the applicants would not be asking for 

any type of variance with this project, and all the proposed units would meet the setback 

requirements for the district. He stated the total combined area for the proposed rezoning would 

encompass 3.08 acres and the density for RM-2 zoning is 6 units per acre. Therefore, the 3.08 

acres would allow for a total of 18 units. Mr. McAllister further explained the proposed parking 

and ingress/egress displayed in the concept plan are all in line with Putnam County design 

standards. He stated the type of development being proposed allows for condensing of building 

area which has the benefit of having remaining land use serve as common open space. Moreover, 

the proposed concept plan allows for approximately 50 percent of the site being available for 

landscape areas, wooded areas, and open space. Mr. McAllister also referenced the Putnam 

County/City of Eatonton 2007-2030 Comprehensive Plan which indicates the proposed area as 

mixed residential use and the proposed land use by the applicants fits into this category of mixed 

residential. The existing sewer and water infrastructure in this area is served by Piedmont Water, 

and the packet includes a letter by Piedmont Water allowing for service in the proposed project. 

Furthermore, Mr. McAllister stated he contacted the original designer of the pump station that 

serves the area and he initiated a separate study that confirms the pump station has capacity for 

this proposed development. In addition, all the required onsite construction of sewage, water, and 

roads will be provided by the developer at no cost to the county. Mr. McAllister stated there 

was further detailed information with potential traffic impact located within the agenda package 

and he would welcome any specific questions that the Commission might have. At the request of 

Ms. Lisa Jackson, he met with Fire Chief Hill to develop a site plan that adhered to the specific 

criteria for emergency vehicles and response; once the two developments are connected there 

will be even better access for emergency vehicles and turn around radius for those vehicles. Mr. 

McAllister closed with his appreciation for the consideration of promoting quality development 

within Putnam County. Mr. Carl Anderson spoke in opposition to the request. Mr. Anderson 

29



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 3 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

stated the last time the property was developed he accepted everything that was being proposed 

and he lost fifty feet of his land, five trees, and water runoff adversely effected his property (Map 

104B, Parcel 010). Mr. Anderson stated he wanted to make sure a buffer was included in the 

development plan for this request to prevent him from losing anymore of his property or trees. 

Mr. Marshall asked for clarification on where his property was located. Mr. Anderson stated 

his property abuts (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. Marshall stated he appreciated Mr. 

Anderson’s input and the Commission would try to be sensitive to his concerns with the 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked if the recommendation would need to be revised to 

include a buffer and abatement for runoff. Ms. Jackson replied that this inclusion would come in 

the preliminary review however, the buffer requirement was already included in the staff 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked Mr. McAllister if the packet included an elevation of the 

properties. Mr. McAllister stated no but the developers are considering continuing the area that 

is seen on the other side of the lot; however, issues with topography could prevent the 

continuation and make for a lower level of elevation. He stated the current site plan created uses 

a 24x72 footprint, and since this would be a townhome community it would not be flat like the 

Waterfront Development which is adjacent. Mr. Oberdeck stated he had visited the property 

and observed the layout of: (Map 104B, Parcel 014), (Map 104B, Parcel 013), (Map 104B, 

Parcel 012) however, he had not observed the property at (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. 

McAllister stated on (Map 104B, Parcel 011) it did look as if some type of excavation had 

occurred at some point in the past by the previous owners. Mr. Oberdeck stated he thought the 

proposed development would be a good addition to the area. Mr. Langley asked Mr. McAllister 

if the property had been accurately surveyed. Mr. McAllister responded yes, that the survey 

provided had been done by a licensed surveyor; Mr. Langley also asked if Mr. Anderson would 

be able to see where the survey lines are. Mr. McAllister responded he would as they were 

staked off. Mr. Marshall stated the project was well thought out and the presentation excellent. 

Mr. Marshall further stated he was going to combine the three requests discussed into one vote. 

11)  Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .58 

acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be 

established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning shall be 

conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) 

of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 

26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 

acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 

012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, 

(2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential 

zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation 

of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 13) Staff 

recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 

with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 

104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .46 acres cannot be 

used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer shall be established 

adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

 

 

 

30



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 4 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Mr. Oberdeck made a motion for approval. Mr. Langley seconded. All approved. 

 

11) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.58 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

13) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 

to Rm-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.46 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr. 

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Lisa Jackson                                                                John Marshall, Jr.  

P&D Director                                                              Chairman   

  

  

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Estate of Claude P. Duncan to rezone 20,037.60 square 

feet (.46 acres) at Tract C, 147 Collis Marina Road from R-1 to RM-2 [Map 104B, Parcel 012] 

(staff-P&D) 

 
 

  

50



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Thursday, January 4, 2018 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

January 4, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Mr. John Marshall Jr., Chairman, called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Attendance 

 

Mrs. Karen Pennamon called the roll. 

 

Present:  John Marshall Jr., Chairman, John Langley, Vice- Chairman, Alan Oberdeck, 

Frederick Ward 

Absent: Tommy Brundage 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, and Jonathan Gladden 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

 

Mr. Jonathan Gladden read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

4. Approval of Minutes – November 2, 2017 

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan M. Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr.  

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 2 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

11. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson & M. John Wilson & ET AL at Tract 

A, 151 Collis Marina Road to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 014]. * 
 

12. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust at Tract B, 

149 Collis Marina Road to rezone 26,571.60 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 

104B, Parcel 013]. * 
 

13. 

 

Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Estate of Claude P. Duncan at Tract C, 147 Collis Marina 

Road to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2[Map 104B, Parcel 012]. * 

 

Items 11, 12, & 13 were discussed together. Mr. Rick McAllister, agent for Patricia A. Wilson 

& M. John Wilson & ET AL; agent for Mary Ellen Peebles Revocable Living Trust; agent 

for Estate of Claude P. Duncan represented this request. Mr. McAllister stated that the 

applicants are requesting to rezone the three parcels from R-1 to RM-2 to combine with the 

adjacent 1.43-acre parcel which is zoned RM-2 (Map 104B, Parcel 011) for a total 3.08 acres. He 

further added that the developers are proposing to construct 18 townhouses and a 2,500-square 

foot amenity building within this development. Mr. McAllister stated the three parcels are 

located between a currently owned RM-3 town home development and an undeveloped RM-2 

zoned property. Mr. McAllister stated that the concept plan included in the packet illustrates 

what the applicants will accomplish with the rezoning request. He stated under the proposed 

RM-2 zoning the Putnam County standards require a front setback of 30 feet, a side setback of 

20 feet, and a rear setback of 20 feet except for Lake Oconee where the setback is 100 feet. Mr. 

McAllister stated the setbacks for the future development have been illustrated in the concept 

plan which is included in the application packet. He stated the applicants would not be asking for 

any type of variance with this project, and all the proposed units would meet the setback 

requirements for the district. He stated the total combined area for the proposed rezoning would 

encompass 3.08 acres and the density for RM-2 zoning is 6 units per acre. Therefore, the 3.08 

acres would allow for a total of 18 units. Mr. McAllister further explained the proposed parking 

and ingress/egress displayed in the concept plan are all in line with Putnam County design 

standards. He stated the type of development being proposed allows for condensing of building 

area which has the benefit of having remaining land use serve as common open space. Moreover, 

the proposed concept plan allows for approximately 50 percent of the site being available for 

landscape areas, wooded areas, and open space. Mr. McAllister also referenced the Putnam 

County/City of Eatonton 2007-2030 Comprehensive Plan which indicates the proposed area as 

mixed residential use and the proposed land use by the applicants fits into this category of mixed 

residential. The existing sewer and water infrastructure in this area is served by Piedmont Water, 

and the packet includes a letter by Piedmont Water allowing for service in the proposed project. 

Furthermore, Mr. McAllister stated he contacted the original designer of the pump station that 

serves the area and he initiated a separate study that confirms the pump station has capacity for 

this proposed development. In addition, all the required onsite construction of sewage, water, and 

roads will be provided by the developer at no cost to the county. Mr. McAllister stated there 

was further detailed information with potential traffic impact located within the agenda package 

and he would welcome any specific questions that the Commission might have. At the request of 

Ms. Lisa Jackson, he met with Fire Chief Hill to develop a site plan that adhered to the specific 

criteria for emergency vehicles and response; once the two developments are connected there 

will be even better access for emergency vehicles and turn around radius for those vehicles. Mr. 

McAllister closed with his appreciation for the consideration of promoting quality development 

within Putnam County. Mr. Carl Anderson spoke in opposition to the request. Mr. Anderson 

52



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 3 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

stated the last time the property was developed he accepted everything that was being proposed 

and he lost fifty feet of his land, five trees, and water runoff adversely effected his property (Map 

104B, Parcel 010). Mr. Anderson stated he wanted to make sure a buffer was included in the 

development plan for this request to prevent him from losing anymore of his property or trees. 

Mr. Marshall asked for clarification on where his property was located. Mr. Anderson stated 

his property abuts (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. Marshall stated he appreciated Mr. 

Anderson’s input and the Commission would try to be sensitive to his concerns with the 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked if the recommendation would need to be revised to 

include a buffer and abatement for runoff. Ms. Jackson replied that this inclusion would come in 

the preliminary review however, the buffer requirement was already included in the staff 

recommendation. Mr. Marshall asked Mr. McAllister if the packet included an elevation of the 

properties. Mr. McAllister stated no but the developers are considering continuing the area that 

is seen on the other side of the lot; however, issues with topography could prevent the 

continuation and make for a lower level of elevation. He stated the current site plan created uses 

a 24x72 footprint, and since this would be a townhome community it would not be flat like the 

Waterfront Development which is adjacent. Mr. Oberdeck stated he had visited the property 

and observed the layout of: (Map 104B, Parcel 014), (Map 104B, Parcel 013), (Map 104B, 

Parcel 012) however, he had not observed the property at (Map 104B, Parcel 011). Mr. 

McAllister stated on (Map 104B, Parcel 011) it did look as if some type of excavation had 

occurred at some point in the past by the previous owners. Mr. Oberdeck stated he thought the 

proposed development would be a good addition to the area. Mr. Langley asked Mr. McAllister 

if the property had been accurately surveyed. Mr. McAllister responded yes, that the survey 

provided had been done by a licensed surveyor; Mr. Langley also asked if Mr. Anderson would 

be able to see where the survey lines are. Mr. McAllister responded he would as they were 

staked off. Mr. Marshall stated the project was well thought out and the presentation excellent. 

Mr. Marshall further stated he was going to combine the three requests discussed into one vote. 

11)  Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .58 

acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be 

established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning shall be 

conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) 

of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 

26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 

acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 

012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, 

(2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential 

zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation 

of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 13) Staff 

recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 to RM-2 

with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent parcels: Map 

104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the .46 acres cannot be 

used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer shall be established 

adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

 

 

 

53



Draft Minutes                                                                           Page 4 of 4                                                                                                        

January 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Mr. Oberdeck made a motion for approval. Mr. Langley seconded. All approved. 

 

11) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 25,264.80 square feet (.58 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .58 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.58 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3)  this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

12) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 26,571.16 square feet (.61 acres) from R-1 

to RM-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .61 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 014; Map 104B, Parcel 012; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.61 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer, 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

13) Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 20,037.60 square feet (.46 acres) from R-1 

to Rm-2 with the following conditions: (1) the .46 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 104B, Parcel 013; Map 104B, Parcel 014; and Map 104B, Parcel 011, and the 

.46 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, (2) a 15-foot wide landscape buffer 

shall be established adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) this rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 

66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

Motion for approval made by: Alan Oberdeck 

Seconded by: John Langley 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

John Marshall, Jr. 

John D. Langley 

Alan M. Oberdeck 

Frederick Ward 

 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Lisa Jackson                                                                John Marshall, Jr.  

P&D Director                                                              Chairman   

  

  

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - January 5, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of 2018 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

 
 

 

  

74



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, January 5, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on January 5, 2018 at approximately 9:00 AM 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, 

Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 9:06 a.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by County Attorney Adam Nelson. 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hersey. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
4. Public Comments 

None 

 

 

 

 

75



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

5. Approval of Agenda 

A request was made to change the order of the agenda by moving agenda item #13 “Discussion 

and possible action concerning Solid Waste” and item #8 “Proposed adoption of changes to the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rentals)” up to 

immediately follow item #6 “Consent Agenda.” 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

agenda as amended.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and 

Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 19, 2017 (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

Consent Agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes and Commissioner Brown abstaining because he was absent 

from the December 19, 2017 meeting. 

 

7. Discussion and possible action concerning Solid Waste (SH) 

Commissioner Addison read a joint statement from the Board of Commissioners: 

“To address the public’s concerns and interest regarding the alleged intention of the Board of 

Commissioners (BOC) to close all Convenience Centers and to modify our current contract with 

Advanced Disposal to enter into a new Curbside Waste Pickup Program, the Putnam County 

Board of Commissioners issues the following statement: On December 1, 2017 a representative 

from Advanced Disposal provided a presentation to the BOC regarding our current Waste 

Disposal Program.  Within the presentation the representative explained our current program 

costs will be increasing by approximately $100,000.00.  Because of this increase, the 

representative proposed an alternate Waste Disposal Program, which he stated, would result in a 

net savings for the county – the program proposed was county-wide Curbside Waste Pickup.  As 

with all third-party contracts, especially those with substantial increases in costs, the BOC along 

with its staff is currently reviewing the Advanced Disposal Contract.  There are many options 

before us, such as keeping the same program we currently have, making plan alterations and/or 

bidding out the contract to other waste disposal companies.  All options will be thoroughly 

reviewed and discussed in public should the BOC decide to make any changes to the current 

contract.” 

 

Public comments were received from the following individuals: 

Mr. David Owens – keep garbage service as is; don’t close the centers 

Mr. Ed Davis – keep the centers open 

Mr. Mark Holihan – keep the centers open 

Mr. Michael Langan – not in favor of closing the centers 

Mike & Deborah Owens – leave the centers open; put it out for bid if a new company is needed 

Mr. William Vargo – garbage trucks stopped in the road could be dangerous; convenience 

centers are controlled enough-contractors are dumping 

Ms. Jennifer Ray – could save money by running it in house instead of using Advanced 

Disposal; issue passes to use the centers 

No action was taken. 

 

76



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 9:39 a.m. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 9:54 a.m. 

 

 

8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D 

(Short Term Vacation Rentals) (AF) 

There was a motion on the floor from the last meeting and this item will resume from that point: 

“Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Chairman Hersey, to approve changes to 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances – Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rentals) to include 

Alternate 1.” 

 

Public Comments were received from the following individuals: 

Ms. Sylbie Yon – for the 3
rd

 time is saying that allowing rentals in R-1R is in violation of the 

ordinances; the number of people allowed doesn’t matter anymore; throw this proposal in the 

trash and start over 

Mr. Mark Willet – concerned over capacity limits and the one strike you’re out portion 

Mr. David Owens – not if favor of allowing short term rentals 

Mr. Ed Davis – proposal hasn’t been thought through enough 

Mr. Mark Holihan – along with short term renters comes problems; consider this more towards 

the taxpayers and quality of life 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to postpone this 

item until alternate 1, revised alternate 2, and new alternate 3 can be considered.  Motion 

carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, and Foster and Chairman Hersey voting yes 

and Commissioner Addison voting no. 

 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 10:59 a.m. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 11:23 a.m. 

 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Brown, to amend the 

agenda and consider original agenda item #12 “Approval of Certification of Road 

Abandonment for Price Road” now.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, 

Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

9. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment for Price Road (KI) 

Mr. Andy Welch spoke in support of this item and commented that it is in the public’s best 

interest to abandon Price Road. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

certification of road abandonment for a portion of Price Road.  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison voting yes and Chairman Hersey voting 

no. (Copy of certificate made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

77



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

 

10. Request for Waiver of Interest from Sidney & Marta White (Tax Comm) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to deny the 

request for waiver of interest from Sidney & Marta White.  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy 

of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

11. Approval of Revision to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Appointment 

Procedures (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

revision to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority appointment procedures.  

Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman 

Hersey voting yes. (Copy of procedures made a part of the minutes on minute book page 

__________.) 

 

12. Confirmation of Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to confirm the 

appointment of Josh Daniel to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority.  Motion 

carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey 

voting yes. 

 

13. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Brown, nominated Patty Burns for 

appointment to the Putnam Development Authority. 

 

Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Addison, nominated James Ryan for 

appointment to the Putnam Development Authority. 

 

Chairman Hersey called for the vote.  Commissioner Irvin voted for James Ryan.  

Commissioner Brown voted for Patty Burns.  Commissioner Foster voted for Patty Burns.  

Commissioner Addison voted for Patty Burns.  Chairman Hersey voted for Patty Burns. 

Patty Burns is the new appointee to the Putnam Development Authority.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

 

14. Discussion of a unification study by MGRC (SH) 

Chairman Hersey explained that the Eatonton City Council authorized the Mayor to request 

technical assistance from the Middle Georgia Regional Commission to conduct a feasibility 

study on consolidation of the City of Eatonton and Putnam County governments.  He asked the 

board to allow action to be taken on this item. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to waive the 

rules and allow action on this item.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, 

Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to vacate the 

original vote to authorize the Chairman to enter into contract, upon agreement by the City 

of Eatonton, with the Carl Vinson Institute to perform a study of governmental unification 

as described in the Institute's proposal, to sign same and negotiate cost sharing of the study 

with the City of Eatonton. 

 

Chairman Hersey ruled this motion out of order, stating that it wasn’t necessary.  Commissioner 

Foster withdrew the motion. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to authorize 

the Chairman to sign a letter to the Middle Georgia Regional Commissioner requesting 

technical assistance to conduct a feasibility study on consolidation of the City of Eatonton 

and Putnam County governments.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, 

Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of letter made a part of the 

minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reminded everyone that Lisa Jackson sent an email with GDOT 

plans for Hwy 441 improvements and a letter of support is needed-will add to next agenda; he 

also requested a transportation work session on January 16
th

. 

 

16. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 6 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

January 5, 2018 

 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: cheered on our Georgia football teams with Go Falcons and Go Dogs 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Foster: none 

 

Commissioner Addison: also said Go Dogs and advised that Tuesday is National Law 

Enforcement Day-he thanked all who serve in this field 

 

Chairman Hersey: none 

 

Closing 
18. Adjournment 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 12:35 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

80



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

Approval of 2018 Alcohol Licenses 

 
 

The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in the County 

Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal, Building Inspector, and Tax 

Commissioner and are ready for BOC approval: 
 

Individual 
Name 

Business 
Name 

Address Retail 
Package: 
Malt 
Beverages 

Retail 
Package: 
Wine 

Retail 
Package: 
Distilled 
Spirits 

Retail 
Consumption 
on Premises: 
Malt 
Beverages 
and/or Wine 

Retail 
Consumption 
on Premises: 
Distilled 
Spirits 

Veronica 
Montiel 

El Sitio 
Mexican 

Grill 

106 
Harmony 

Crossing 

 
  

X X 

Javier 
Medina 

El Agave 960 
Greensboro 

Road 

   X X 

Robert 
Parham, Jr. 

Robert’s 
Night Club 

338 
Glenwood 
Springs 
Road 

   X X 

Anila Ali Long Shoals 
Country 

Store 

1093 
Sparta 

Highway 

X X    

Sanjay 
Suhag 

Lakeside 
Bait & 
Tackle 

1065 
Milledgeville 
Road 

X X    

Hiren Patel KC’s Food 
Mart 

406 Pea 
Ridge Road 

X X    

Joann 
Hedrick 

Oconee 
Outdoors 

891 
Greensboro 

Highway 

X X    

Prakash 
Patel 

Discount 
Liquor Store 

160 Pea 
Ridge Road 

X X X   

Alex 
Davidson 

Georgia 
Butts BBQ 

1137 Lake 
Oconee 
Parkway 

   X X 

Richard L. 
Young, Jr. 

Terry’s One 
Stop 

271 
Scuffleboro 
Road 

X X    

Mark Little Twin 
Bridges 

Landing 

611 Twin 
Bridges 

Road 

X X    

Mark Little Harmony 
Crossing 
Foods 

1001 Lake 
Oconee 
Parkway 

X X    

        

81



Individual 
Name 

Business 
Name 

Address Retail 
Package: 
Malt 
Beverages 

Retail 
Package: 
Wine 

Retail 
Package: 
Distilled 
Spirits 

Retail 
Consumption 
on Premises: 
Malt 
Beverages 
and/or Wine 

Retail 
Consumption 
on Premises: 
Distilled 
Spirits 

Gregory 

Scoggins 

Kwik Stop 

#3 

947 Gray 

Road 
X X    

Janice 
Allred 

Jerry’s Bait 
& Tackle 

1054 Lake 
Oconee 
Parkway 

X X    

Terry 
Jefferson 
Walker 

The 
Watering 
Hole 

903 
Harmony 
Road 

   X X 

Christopher 
Michael 
Bragg 

Iron Fork 
Café 

106 
Harmony 
Crossing 

   X  

Robert Lee 
Lupton 

Sav-A-Lot 958 
Greensboro 

Road 

X X    

John David 

Hudson 

Mellow 

Mushroom 

105 

Harmony 
Crossing 

   X X 

William 
Clark 

Sugar 
Creek 
Marina 

353 Parks 
Mill Road X X    

 

82



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Discussion and possible action on Oconee Springs Park Improvement Plan (staff-OSP) 

  

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D (Short 

Term Vacation Rentals) (AF) (tabled at 01-05-18 meeting) 

 
 

  

106



ORDINANCE  

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING SHORT TERM VACATION RENTALS WITHIN 

THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF PUTNAM COUNTY 

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioner’s (“Board”) recognizes 

the significant impact short term vacation rentals within the unincorporated areas of the 

County may have on limited public resources; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide for the health and safety of all 

individuals renting, offering for rent and residing adjacent and near to short term vacation 

rentals; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUTNAM 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, HEREBY ORDAIN as follows:  

 

SECTION 1: That Appendix D, Short Term Vacation Rental, is hereby included in the 

Code of Ordinances, Putnam County, Georgia and shall read as follows: 

 

Sec. 1. – Short Title  

 

 This ordinance shall be titled the “Putnam County Short Term Vacation Rental 

Ordinance.” 

 

Sec. 2. – Definitions 

 

For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words and 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 

words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the 

singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 

"shall" is always mandatory and not merely dicta. 

 

a. Short Term Vacation Rental.  Short term vacation rental means an 

accommodation for transient guests where, in exchange for compensation, a 

residential dwelling unit is provided for lodging for a period of time not to 

exceed 30 consecutive days.  Short term vacation rental shall not include any 

residential dwelling unit not regularly offered for rental, which shall be 

defined as any residence offered for rental less than 14 days in any given 

calendar year.  For the purposes of this definition, a residential dwelling shall 

include all housing types and shall exclude group living or other lodging uses.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



ALTERNATE 3: 

a. Adult.  Adult shall mean a natural person over the age of 12. 

 

b. Short Term Vacation Rental. Short term vacation rental means an 

accommodation for transient guests where, in exchange for compensation, a 

residential dwelling unit is provided for lodging for a period of time not to 

exceed 30 consecutive days.  Short term vacation rental shall not include any 

residential dwelling unit not regularly offered for rental, which shall be 

defined as any residence offered for rental less than 14 days in any given 

calendar year.  For the purposes of this definition, a residential dwelling shall 

include all housing types and shall exclude group living or other lodging uses.  

 

Sec. 3 – Regulations for short term vacation rentals. 

 

 Short term vacation rentals may be offered to the public for rental following 

issuance of a short term vacation rental certificate, receipt of an occupation tax 

certificate, and payment of any and all applicable state and county taxes.  Any taxes 

owed to the County as a result of any hotel motel tax shall be paid to the County Clerk 

and any failure to remit the same or to register pursuant to this Ordinance shall be subject 

to the penalties included in Section 54-38 of these Code of Ordinances.  Owners shall 

also insure occupants do not disrupt or interfere with rights of adjacent property owners 

to quiet enjoyment of their property and shall adhere to the following requirements: 

 

ORIGINAL TEXT: 

a. Owner shall not allow any gathering of persons at the short term vacation 

rental in excess of 2 more than the stated residential occupancy.   

 

b. Owner shall not allow occupants to cause excessive noise at the residence and 

shall maintain against any noise after 10:00 PM which is audible at a distance 

of 100 feet from the residence. 

 

c. Owners shall not allow occupants to park any vehicle on a public or private 

road or at any other location other than those areas specifically designated 

within the application for the short term vacation rental certificate. 

 

d. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal, state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108



ALTERNATE 1: 

a. At no time shall occupancy at the short term vacation rental be in excess of 2 

persons per bedroom and 2 additional individuals, excluding any minor child 

under the age of 12.  Such occupancy limit shall be conspicuously posted 

within the short term vacation rental.    

 

b. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, Sections 29-1 and 32-

20. 

 

ALTERNATE 2: 

a. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, Sections 29-1 and 32-

20. 

 

b. Owners shall not allow overnight occupancy to exceed the maximum capacity 

specified in the rental certificate. 

 

ALTERNATE 3: 

a. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, Sections 29-1 and 32-

20. 

 

b. Owners shall not allow occupancy to exceed the maximum adult capacity 

specified in the rental certificate. 

 

c. Any rental to parties consisting of 20 or more adults shall require a “special 

event” permit as provided in Appendix B of this Code. 

 

d. The owners shall not allow overnight parking of vehicles or other 

conveyances on any public roads or the right-of-way of said roads. 

 

e. Owners shall not allow overnight occupancy of any temporary shelter 

including, but not limited to, motorhomes, campers and tents. 

 

Sec. 4 – Application; fee. 

 

a. An application for a short term vacation rental certificate shall be submitted, 

under oath, on a form specified by the County Clerk, accompanied by a non-

refundable application fee Planning & Development Director, or their 

designee, accompanied by a $25.00 non-refundable application fee as set forth 

by the Board of Commissioners, which shall include at a minimum the 

following information or documentation: 

 

1. The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of 

record of the dwelling unit for which a certificate is sought.  If such 

109



owner is not a natural person, the application shall identify all partners, 

officers and/or directors of any such entity, including personal contact 

information; 

 

ALTERNATE 3: 

1. The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of 

record of the dwelling unit for which a certificate is sought.  If such 

owner is not a natural person, the application shall identify all officers 

and/or directors of any such entity, including personal contact 

information: 

 

2. The address of the unit to be used as a short term vacation rental; 

 

3. The name, address, telephone number and email address of the short 

term vacation rental agent, which shall constitute his or her 24 hour 

contact information and who shall: 

 

a. Be reasonably available to handle any problems arising from 

use of the short term vacation rental unit; 

 

b. Appear on the premises within 24 hours following notification 

from the Planning and Development Director, or his/her 

designee, of issues related to the use or occupancy of the 

premises. including, but not limited to, complaints of 

unreasonable noise or disturbances, disorderly conduct, or 

other illegal activity. 

 

c. Receive and accept service of any notice of violation related to 

the use or occupancy of the premises; and 

 

d. Monitor the short term vacation rental unit for compliance with 

this chapter; 

 

4. The owner’s sworn acknowledgment that he or she has received a 

copy of this section, has reviewed it and understands its requirements; 

 

ORIGINAL TEXT: 

5. The owner’s designation of how many occupants may reside at the 

short term vacation rental; 

 

6. The number and location of parking spaces allotted to the premises; 

 

ALTERNATE 1: 

5. The number of bedrooms in the short term vacation rental; 

 

 

110



ALTERNATE 2: 

5.   The owner shall state the maximum occupancy for the residence, 

which shall be the same number as advertised and marketed to potential 

renters by or on behalf of the owner. 

 

ALTERNATE 3: 

5. The owner’s designation of the maximum adult occupancy for the 

residence, which shall be the same number as advertised and marketed 

to potential renters on behalf of the owner;  

 

6. The number of bedrooms contained in the residence; 

 

7. The owner’s agreement to use his or her best efforts to assure that use 

of the premises by short term vacation rental occupants will not disrupt 

the neighborhood, and will not interfere with the rights of neighboring 

property owners to the quiet enjoyment of their properties;  

 

8. A copy of an exemplar agreement between the owner and occupant(s) 

which obligate the occupant to abide by all of the requirements of the 

chapter, and other Putnam County ordinances, state and federal law, 

and that such a violation of any of these rules may result in the 

immediate termination of the agreement and eviction from the 

premises, as well as potential liability for payment of fines levied;  

 

9. Proof of the owner’s current ownership of the short term vacation 

rental unit; and 

 

10. Proof of homeowner’s insurance;  

 

b. Registration under this code section is not transferrable and should ownership 

of a short term vacation rental change, a new application is required, including 

application fee.  In the event of any other change in the information or facts 

provided in the application, the holder of the short term rental certificate shall 

amend the filed application without payment of any additional application fee. 

 

ALTERNATE 3: 

 

b.  Registration under this code section is not transferrable and should ownership 

of a short term vacation rental change, a new application is required, including 

application fee.  In the event of any other change in the information or facts 

provided in the application, the holder of the short term rental certificate shall 

amend the filed application without payment of any additional application fee.  

Short term rentals occurring without a valid rental certificate shall constitute a 

violation of this Chapter and shall be subject to a minimum fine of $250.00.  

Each occurrence shall constitute a separate offense.   

 

111



 

Sec. 5 – Review of application. 

 

Review of an application shall be conducted by the Planning and Development 

Director, or their designee, in accordance with due process principles and shall be 

granted unless the applicant fails to meet the conditions and requirements of this chapter, 

or otherwise fails to demonstrate the ability to comply with local, state, or federal laws.  

Any false statements or information provided in the application are grounds for 

revocation, suspension and/or imposition of penalties, including denial of future 

applications.  A certificate shall not be issued unless the owner demonstrates compliance 

with the applicable codes. 

 

Sec. 6 – Violations; revocation. 

 

a. In any instance in which use of the short term rental by a guest results in a 

violation of these ordinances, or any other ordinance of Putnam County, 

notice of such violation shall be provided to the short term vacation rental 

agent.  Upon notice of three violations within a period of 12 consecutive 

months, the Planning & Development Director shall revoke the short term 

vacation rental certificate and reject all applications for the subject premises 

for a period of 12 consecutive months.  Failure to remedy any notice of 

violations may result in the issuance of a citation, which shall be prosecuted 

pursuant to this Code.  Upon a conviction of violation, the Planning & 

Development Director may revoke the short term vacation rental certificate 

and reject all applications for the subject premises for a period of 12 

consecution months.  

 

ALTERNATE 2 

 

a. Short term rentals occurring on or after January 1, 2019 without a valid rental 

certificate shall constitute a violation of this Chapter and shall be subject to a 

minimum fine of $250.00.  Each occurrence shall constitute a separate 

offense.   

 

 

b. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to limit any action by the 

Putnam County Health Department to seek the remediation of any 

dangerous condition at the short term vacation rental or to take any action 

seeking to protect and preserve against any threat to public safety. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

112



Sec. 7 – Appeal Rights. 

 

A person aggrieved by the Planning & Development Director’s decision to 

revoke, suspend or deny a short term vacation rental certificate may appeal the decision 

to the County Manager.  The appeal must be filed with the County Manager’s office in 

writing, within 30 calendar days after the adverse action and it shall contain a concise 

statement of the reasons for the appeal.  A decision from the County Manager shall be 

rendered within 5 business days of receipt of the appeal, and may hold any administrative 

hearing deemed necessary in consideration of the appeal. 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 2: That any ordinances or resolutions as adopted by this Board which are in 

conflict with these ordinances are hereby repealed and rendered ineffective. 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this ordinance has been duly adopted by the 

governing authority of Putnam County, Georgia on the ___ day of ___________, 2017.  

 

 

  

      _________________________ 

      Chairman 

 

 

 

 

113



CERTIFICATION 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original 

ordinance adopted by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners on the ____ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of Putnam County, 

this ____day of _______________, 2017. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      County Clerk 

 

[Affix Seal] 

 

 

 

 

114



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
12. Authorization for Chairman to sign Service Delivery Strategy Certificate of Extension (staff-

CM) 

 

  

115



116



117



118



119



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
13. Authorization for Chairman to sign letter to GDOT for concurrence with road closures in 

conjunction with the upcoming SR24-US441 widening project (staff-P&D) 

 

  

120



 

 

January 16, 2018 

 

 

 

Mr. Todd Price 

District Preconstruction Engineer  

Georgia Department of Transportation 

District 2 

643 Highway 15 South 

P O Box 8 

Tennille, GA 31089 

 

RE: SR 24 – US 441 Widening 

 

Dear Mr. Price: 

 

This is to confirm that the Putnam County Board of Commissioners concurs with the proposed 

road closures of specified sections of Bethel, Harmony and Price Road as outlined on the 

Georgia Department of Transportation revised Mainline Plan for Putnam County, dated 

November 21, 2017. 

 

If further information is needed, please let me know.  We appreciate all you do for Putnam 

County. 
 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Stephen J. Hersey 

Chairman 

 

121


	Top
	1. 20180116 BOC Welcome
	2. 20180116 BOC Invocation
	3. 20180116 BOC Pledge
	4. 20180116 BOC McAllister-Wilson Rezoning
	1-4-18 P&amp;Z Minutes II LJ.doc
	wilson.pdf

	5. 20180116 BOC McAllister-Peebles Rezoning
	1-4-18 P&amp;Z Minutes II LJ.doc
	PEEBLES.pdf

	6. 20180116 BOC McAllister-Duncan Rezoning
	1-4-18 P&amp;Z Minutes II LJ.doc
	Duncan.pdf

	7. 20180116 BOC Public Comments
	8. 20180116 BOC Agenda Approval
	9. 20180116 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 01-05-18 BOC Minutes2.docx
	2018 Alcohol Licenses 011618a.doc

	10. 20180116 BOC OSP Improvement
	OSP Additions and Improvements.pdf
	OSP Quote-Southeastern Buildings.pdf
	OSP Quote-Complete Renovation rotated.pdf
	OSP Quote-Touax.pdf
	OSP Quote-Harper Custom Construction.pdf
	OSP Quote-Armstrong Steel Corp.pdf
	OSP Quote-Modular Genius.pdf
	OSP Sound System Budget.pdf
	OSP Plan.pdf

	11. 20180116 BOC Appendix D
	Appendix D Short Term Vacation Rental Ordinance with alt.1,2,3 rev 011618.doc

	12. 20180116 BOC SDS Extension
	SDS Extension.pdf

	13. 20180116 BOC GDOT Letter
	2018-01-16 GDOT SR24-US441 Widening.docx

	14. 20180116 BOC Litter
	15. 20180116 BOC CM Report
	16. 20180116 BOC CA Report
	17. 20180116 BOC Comm Announcements
	18. 20180116 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

